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WASHINGTON METROPOLITAN AREA TRANSIT AUTHORITY
600 Fifth Street, NW, Washington, DC 20001-2651

AMENDMENT OF SOLICITATION / MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT
1. AMENDMENT/MODIFICATION 2. EFFECTIVE DATE

Amendment (A003) August 11, 2017

3. ISSUED BY PURCHASING SECTION 4, ADMINISTERED BY (If other than block 3)
Office of Procurement and Materials

600 Fifth St, NW, Washington DC.

5: CONTRACTOR N/A 6. FORM TYPE
NAME AND ADDRESS (Check only one)

X AMENDMENT OF SOLICITATION NO. _RFQ NOCQ17164
Issue Date: July 21, 2017

(Street, city,
county, state, I:]
and Zip Code) MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT/ORDER NO.

7.THIS BLOCK APPLIES ONLY TO AMENDMENTS OF SOLICITATIONS

The above numbered solicitation is amended as set forth in block 10. The hour and date specified for proposal due date is not extended.
Offerors must acknowledge receipt of this amendment prior to the hour and date specified in the solicitation, or as amended, by one of the
following methods; (a) By signing and returning _one (1) copy of this amendment; (b) by acknowledging receipt of this amendment on each
copy of the offer submitted; or (c) by separate letter or telegram which includes a reference to the solicitation and amendment numbers.
FAILURE OF YOUR ACKNOWLEDGMENT TO BE RECEIVED AT THE ISSUING OFFICE PRIOR TO THE HOUR AND DATE SPECIFIED
MAY RESULT IN REJECTION OF YOUR OFFER. If, by virtue of this amendment you desire to change an offer already submitted, such
change may be made by telegram or letter, provided such telegram makes reference to the solicitation and this amendment, and is received
prior to the openina hour and date specified.

8. ACCOUNTING AND APPROPRIATION DATA (If required) (N/A)
9. THIS BLOCK APPLIES ONLY TO MODIFICATIONS OF CONTRACTS/ORDERS (N/A)

(aD This Change Order is issued pursuant to

The Changes set forth in block 10 are made to the above numbered contract/order.

(b The above numbered contract/order is modified to reflect the administrative changes (such as changes in paying office, appropriation
data, etc.) set forth in block 10.

(c)lj This Supplemental Agreement is entered into pursuant to authority of
It modifies the above numbered contract as set forth in block 10.

10. DESCRIPTION OF AMENDMENT: Answers to Questions for RFP CQ17164 Background Check from
Interested Offerors:

1. Attached please find the revised price schedule. Please use this Price Schedule in your proposal.
The price is now differentiated between United States and International background searches.

2. Amend Scope of Work Part A No. 5 to read: Multi-Jurisdictional criminal history search will include
county and statewide criminal and civil records. The scope of the investigation must be in the
previous ten (10) years.

3. Delete Scope of Work Part C No. 6.3.: Delete the words “Contractor is preferred to be a member of
the National Association of Professional Background Screeners”.

---See Continuation of A003 --

Except as provided herein, all terms and conditions of the document referenced in block 6, as heretofore changed, remain unchanged and in full force and effect.

11. [ | CONTRACTOR/OFFEROR IS REQUIRED TO SIGN THIS ] CONTRACTOR/OFFEROR IS NOT REQUIRED TO SIGN THIS
| MODIFICATION AND RETURN _ONE (1) _COPY TO DOCUMENT

ISSUING OFFICE.
12. NAME OF CONTRACTOR/OFFICE 15. WASHINGTON METROPOLITAN AREA TRANSIT AUTHORITY

BY B ;
(Signature of person authorized to sign) (Signature of Contracting Offrcer)

13. NAME AND TITLE OF SIGNER (Type or print) 14. DATE SIGNED 16. NAME OF CONTRACTING OFFICER (Type or print) 17. DATE SIGNED
Monique M. Anderson 8/11/2017

PROC RFP CQ17164 A002 Background Check
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Continuation of Amendment A003

To: ALL VENDORS
Subject: AMENDMENT 003
EXPLANATIONS TO OFFERORS

WMATA RFP CQ17164 BACKGROUND CHECK

1) Per the solicitation, there are not criminal searches from counties or statewide
requested (which are the most accurate searches). The only criminal searches identified
are a national criminal database check (commercial database and not directly from the
source) and federal district criminal searches. We work with many transit agencies and
have never heard of not using a county and/or state criminal search. Can you please
confirm that per the Statement of Work requirements listed on page 88, there are no
county or state criminal searches requested?

WMATA Response: The scope of work Part A No. 5 page 88 is amended to read: Multi-
Jurisdictional criminal history search will include county and statewide criminal and civil
records. The scope of investigation must be in the previous ten (10) years.

2) If the requirements change and searching for county and state criminal searches are
required, could WMATA clarify the scope of the investigation requested (how far back,
whether county or state, confirming that the information must be obtained directly from the
governmental source and/or that the information may not be obtained using automated
methods often referred to as ‘screen scraping’ in the industry)?

WMATA Response: Ten (10) years.

3) Generally full time personnel have a specific number of sick days and vacation. During
the time in which the 2+ full time people have such time, would we be required to backfill
their position during time off?

WMATA Response: No, the contractor would not be required to backfill the on-site
positions during their vacation and sick days.

4) Per the pricing page, there is a single rate for the background check package
regardless of whether the search is conducted within the US or outside. We usually see
these separated due to reduced cost for searches within the US. Can you confirm that
this unit rate is for searches both within the US and outside?

WMATA Response: The price schedule of the RFP has been amended. Please refer to
attachments in this amendment A0O3 for the revised price schedule. Please use the

revised price schedule forms in your proposal. The price between United Sates and
International background check has been differentiated.

5) Our company is unable to provide contractors to sit on site. Are you open to proposals
without this piece?

WMATA Response: Yes, proposals without the on-site support personnel is acceptable.
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Per A001 dated July 27, 2017, the Authority reserves the right to make separate awards
to different vendors on the Background Check and On-Site Personnel Staffing requirement
as specified in the Price Schedule. However the Authority may also make a single award

to a vendor who proposed on both of the requirements in the Price Schedule, if it is in its
best interest of WMATA.

6) | do not see the pricing that you are currently paying for these services in any of this
material you provided. We would like to know what you are currently paying for your
background check and supporting compliance processes under the award for your current
vendor.

WMATA Response: WMATA cannot provide the current pricing for the background
checks.

7) Who is your current provider for background screening services? Please provide their
current pricing, if possible.

WMATA Response: The current provider is First Choice Background Screening. WMATA
cannot provide the current pricing.

8) What is your estimated budget for this project?

WMATA Response: WMATA cannot provide the budget for this project.

9) Are there any pain points with your current provider?

WMATA Response: WMATA cannot provide the pain points with the current provider.

10) Why are you evaluating new providers for background screening services?

WMATA Response: The current contract is expiring and WMATA is seeking to re-
compete these services.

11) What is your anticipated start date?

WMATA Response: October 2, 2017

12) Will preference be given to providers that are accredited (not just a member) by the
National Association of Professional Background Screeners (NAPBS)?

WMATA Response: No, preference will not be given to providers that are accredited nor
members of NAPBS. The Scope of Work has been amended to delete Part C No. 6.3.

Delete the words “Contractor is preferred to be a member of the National Association of
Professional Background Screeners”.

C:\USERS\E009702\DOCUMENTS\CONTRACTS\ON-GOINGI\CONTRACT\BACKGROUND SCREENINGVAMEND\WMATA RFP CQ 17164_ A003 PAGE 2.00CX
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13) As a privately held company, financial information is considered highly confidential in
nature, and it is our preference not to include this type of data during the RFP process.
May vendors submit letters from their banking institution and certified public accountant
attesting to their financial strength in lieu of the requested cash on hand, sources of
credit, and financial statements? If selected as a finalist, we would be happy to provide
you with the requested financial information upon the completion of a mutual
nondisclosure agreement.

WMATA Response: Per notice to offerors, in order to ensure that your proposal complies
with the Authority’s procurement regulations and that it will be acceptable to the Authority, the
forms must be completed & submitted as specified.

14) The Past Performance Evaluation Form asks for vendor clients to provide their
contract value. Many of our clients are uncomfortable with providing this private
information. Are reference clients allowed to leave this value blank, or substitute
contract value with volume of annual searches?

WMATA Response: This portion must not be left blank. Volume substitution in lieu of
value is acceptable.

15) Under Pre-Award Evaluation Data, questions 7 and 8, vendors are asked to provide a
list of “current” contracts and a list of “similar” contracts. Please clarify the difference
between these two lists.

WMATA Response: Current means on going and state percentage of completion. Similar
are completed contracts in the last two (2) years.

16) To respect the privacy of our clients, we do not typically list “contract amounts,” as
requested under questions 7 and 8 regarding contract lists under Pre-Award Evaluation
Data. Can vendors provide annual order volume, instead of contract amounts?

WMATA Response: Per notice to offerors, in order to ensure that your proposal complies
with the Authority’s procurement regulations and that it will be acceptable to the Authority, the
forms must be completed & submitted as specified.

17)\ Is your current provider integrated with PeopleSoft 9.1 TAM/CG?

WMATA Response: No.

18) Regarding section 9.1 on page 90 of the RFP document: do you require SSN,
birthdate, prior work experience, and education information to be returned to
PeopleSoft?

WMATA Response: Yes.

19) Does WMATA wish to capture the disclosure and authorization release form in
PeopleSoft?
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WMATA Response: No.

20) Section 9.2.11 on page 91 states: “Describe the methodolocgy for data conversion
of legacy data when the contract ends.” Please clarify. What are you seeking from the
vendor with this question?

WMATA Response: What we are seeking to know is how the vendor goes about working
with a client to decommission or provide the data that WMATA would need to reference
for future inquiries, court cases, etc.

21) Does the current provider have two on-site, full time representatives at WMATA? If so
can you please provide the current pricing for this service?

WMATA Response: No, the current provider does not provide on-site personnel.

22) Are you willing to have two dedicated, full-time representatives located at the
provider’'s headquarters instead of two on-site provider representatives at the WMATA
location?

WMATA Response: The two (2) On-site support personnel must be located at the
Jackson Graham Building or at any other designated WMATA location. WMATA is not
willing to have them located in the provider's headquarters.

23) Regarding proposal evaluations: can you provide a breakdown of how the
evaluation criteria will be weighted?

WMATA Response: The rating for acceptability criteria is low price technically acceptable.
A rating of acceptable is required to be eligible for award consideration.

24) Can WMATA provide more specifics on what specific background checks are run
and how often? As a vendor that already does business with WMATA, we may be able
to offer cost savings by bundling a price with the services already being used with us,
but we need more concrete numbers to come with an estimated annual spend on the
background check side.

WMATA Response: Please refer to the RFP Scope of Work for specific background
checks.

PLEASE REFER TO THE ATTACHED REVISED PRICE SCHEDULES AND
USE IT IN YOUR PROPOSAL.

(Except as provided herein, all terms and conditions of the document referenced in block 6, remain
unchanged and in full force and effect)

-—End of Amendment A003 WMATA RFP CQ17164---
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WASHINGTON METROPOLITAN AREA TRANSIT AUTHORITY

SUPPLY AND SERVICE CONTRACT

RFP CQ17164

PRICE SCHEDULE SHEET

WMATA CQ17164 BACKGROUND CHECK
Price Schedule for BASE YEAR (Amendment A003)
Background Check

Description Estimated Unit of Unit Rate (S) Extended Price Comments
Quantity Measure per Year (Base
per Year (UOM Year)
UNITED STATES Searches 2,000 EACH S S
Background Check,
Includes Part A, B, and C
INTERNATIONAL Searches 400 EACH S S
Background Check,
Includes Part A, B, and C
TOTAL= | S
On-Site Personnel - Staffing
Estimated Estimated No. of Unitof | No.of | $Unit Rate | Extended Price | No. of | Extended Price
Staffing/ Quantity of Hours Measure Days per Hour (E) Weeks per Year
Position Person/s Per Day Per (D) E=AxBxCxD Per (Base Year)
(A) (B) Week Year (G)
(€) (F) G=ExF
Background 2 7.5 Hour S S 52 S
Screening
Coordinators

All rates shall be fully loaded, meaning that all direct and indirect costs are included, including profit,
overhead, G&A, etc. All expenses, including, but not limited to photocopying shall be included.

The estimated quantity is not a guarantee of the actual quantity to be required or ordered.

Authorized Name & Signature

Company Name

Date

WMATA Vendor Number

Rev. 03/17




WASHINGTON METROPOLITAN AREA TRANSIT AUTHORITY
SUPPLY AND SERVICE CONTRACT RFEP CQ17164

PRICE SCHEDULE SHEET (Continuation)

WMATA CQ17164 BACKGROUND CHECK
Price Schedule for OPTION YEAR 1 (Amendment A003)
Background Check

Description Estimated Unit of Unit Rate (S) Extended Price Comments
Quantity Measure per Year (Option
per Year (Uom Year 1)
UNITED STATES Searches 2,000 EACH S S
Background Check,
Includes Part A, B, and C
INTERNATIONAL Searches 400 EACH S S
Background Check,
Includes Part A, B, and C
TOTAL= | S
On-Site Personnel - Staffing
Estimated Estimated No. of Unit of No. of | $ Unit Rate | Extended Price | No. of | Extended Price
Staffing/ Quantity of Hours Measure Days per Hour (E) Weeks per Year
Position Person/s Per Day Per (D) E=AxBxXxCxD Per (Option Year 1)
(A) (B) Week Year (G)
(€ (F) G=ExF
Background 2 7.5 Hour 5 S S 52 S
Screening
Coordinators

All rates shall be fully loaded, meaning that all direct and indirect costs are included, including profit,
overhead, G&A, etc. All expenses, including, but not limited to photocopying shall be included.

The estimated quantity is not a guarantee of the actual quantity to be required or ordered.

Authorized Name & Signature

Company Name

Date

WMATA Vendor Number

Rev. 03/17




WMATA CQ17164 BACKGROUND CHECK

WASHINGTON METROPOLITAN AREA TRANSIT AUTHORITY

SUPPLY AND SERVICE CONTRACT

RFP CQ17164

PRICE SCHEDULE SHEET (Continuation)

Background Check

Description Estimated Unit of Unit Rate (S) Extended Price Comments
Quantity Measure per Year
per Year (Uom
UNITED STATES Searches 2,000 EACH S S
Background Check,
Includes Part A, B, and C
INTERNATIONAL Searches 400 EACH S S
Background Check,
Includes Part A, B, and C
TOTAL= | S
On-Site Personnel - Staffing
Estimated Estimated No. of Unit of No. of | $ Unit Rate | Extended Price | No. of | Extended Price
Staffing/ Quantity of Hours Measure Days per Hour (E) Weeks per Year
Position Person/s Per Day Per (D) E=AxBxCxD Per
(A) (B) Week Year (G)
(€ (F) G=ExF
Background 2 7.5 Hour 5 S S 52 S
Screening
Coordinators

All rates shall be fully loaded, meaning that all direct and indirect costs are included, including profit,
overhead, G&A, etc. All expenses, including, but not limited to photocopying shall be included.

The estimated quantity is not a guarantee of the actual quantity to be required or ordered.

Authorized Name & Signature

Company Name

Date

WMATA Vendor Number

Rev. 03/17
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	TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS
	PART A: BACKGROUND SCREENING SERVICES
	Perform background screening services per year as requested by WMATA, including but not limited to:
	1. Employment History Verification/Validation will include the last ten (10) years of employment history and dates of employment, termination(s), resignation(s), job titles(s), position(s) held and rehire eligibility for all positions held.
	2. International Background Screening Capabilities will include verification/validation of employment history, criminal history, social security number, education and professional licensure and/or certifications.
	3. Social Security Number Verification/Validation will include a national cross check, trace and verification of accurate social security numbers.
	4. Sex Offender Registry Searches will include a national cross check of all sex offender databases and registries.
	5. Multi‐Jurisdictional Criminal History Searches will include a criminal and civil records search nationwide.
	6. Federal Criminal History Searches will include a criminal search of Federal records.
	7. Verification/Validation of Address will include a history of residential addresses for the previous ten (10) years.
	8. Motor Vehicle Records Checks will include verification of valid operator’s license and a history of license activity within all states of residency supplied in the previous ten (10) years.
	9. Secondary and Post‐Secondary Educational Verification/Validation will include confirmation of institution(s) attended, courses taken or degree(s) earned, dates of graduation, and major course(s) of study.
	10. Professional Licensure and/or Certification Verification will include verification of professional licensure and/or certifications.
	The contractor will initiate initial communication with the applicant or employee if determined such information would make the individual disqualified for employment.
	PART C: REQUIREMENTS FOR ALL BACKGROUND SCREENING SERVICES
	1. Contractor’s Experience

	1.1. Contractors will have a minimum of five (5) years of experience in performing the background screenings required in this solicitation. (See Evaluation Criteria for details).
	2. Exchange of Data
	2.1. WMATA and the contractor will exchange all relevant data/information transmitted securely through web applications/service.
	2.2. Contractor will deliver background screening information electronically.
	2.3. Contractor will submit a confirmation that a background screening request has been received by the contractor.
	2.4. Contractor will notify WMATA if the request for a background screening was not complete or requires correction within three (3) days.
	2.5. WMATA will provide the following information to contractor when requesting a background screening: name, social security number and date ordered.
	2.6. WMATA shall have the ability to cancel a background screening order that is in process.

	3. WMATA Representatives
	3.1. Contractor will respond to background screening requests only from authorized HR representatives of WMATA.

	4.   Turnaround Time and Notice of Delay
	4.1 Contractor will be allotted a turnaround time of two (2) business days or 48 hours beginning from the date/time that WMATA transmits the request to the Contractor for criminal history, employment history and Social Security number verification / v...


	4.3.1 Should the Contractor be unable to obtain the information within this specified timeframe, the Contractor will provide notice to WMATA prior to the ten (10) business day window and provide an explanation for the delay, status and estimated time ...
	4.3.2 Upon notification of delay, Contractor can be granted a maximum extension of three (3) business days to complete and submit the information requested by WMATA.
	5. Archiving System
	5.1. Contractor will maintain a secure archiving system that allows WMATA access to all requested background screening information for the duration of the period of performance including option years that WMATA elects to exercise.
	5.2. Contractor will provide 24 hour per day, 7 days per week access to background screening information via secure web application/service to WMATA’s representatives.
	5.3. Upon the expiration of the contract, Contractor is required to provide all records retrieved on behalf of WMATA in electronic format.

	6. Training of Contractor Employees
	6.1. Contractor will furnish trained qualified staff as necessary to perform the requested background screenings and supply WMATA with documented proof of training.
	6.2. Contractor will have access to legal counsel with background screening and Fair Credit Reporting Act expertise.
	6.3. Contractor is preferred to be a member of the National Association of Professional Background Screeners.

	7. Training of WMATA Employees
	7.1. Contractor will perform training services and be available for assistance to WMATA representatives to include, but is not limited to, exchange and retrieval of data, interpreting results, manipulation of data and the communication methods between...
	7.2. Contractor will furnish WMATA FCRA forms and procedures and notify WMATA of changes to FCRA regulations and other applicable laws.

	8. Confidentiality of Information
	8.1. Contractor will enter with WMATA in a confidentiality agreement.

	9. Information Systems and Security
	9.1 Contractor will have the capacity to integrate with PeopleSoft 9.1 TAM/CG to include requesting the Background Check Package and return of SSN, Birthdate, Prior Work Experience, and Education.
	9.2 Additional Requirements for Integrated Services/Technology/Reporting, include but are not limited to;


	9.2.3 Do you use third party system(s) or solutions to assist or complete the implementation? If so, please provide additional details.
	9.2.4 If the system solution will be Cloud based, explain whether it will be public, private or hybrid, etc.
	9.2.5 Describe the System’s Change Management process that you follow.
	9.2.6 Provide a list of process certifications, such as ISO, etc. that your technical group follows.
	9.2.7 Describe the Software Development Life Cycle (SDLC) methodology as it relates to the System.
	9.3.1 Describe how data access security is implemented.
	9.3.2 Describe the security standards and policies complied by the system.
	9.3.3 If there is an outsourcing contract with third party, do agreement addresses the risks, security controls and processes for information systems, networks and desktop environments in outsourcing contracts?
	9.3.4 Does an Incident Management procedure exist to handle incidents including reporting, correlation, and remediation?
	9.3.5 Describe procedures in place for users, to report security weakness in, or threats to, systems or services.
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	SMALL BUSINESS LOCAL PREFERENCE PROGRAM (SBLPP)
	Combined Glossary of Definitions
	Acceptance Period: The number of days available to the Authority to award a Contract pursuant to this solicitation, during which period offerors may not withdraw their offers.
	Board of Directors:  The Board of Directors of the Washington Metropolitan Area Transit Authority.
	Claim: A written demand or assertion by the Contractor seeking, as a legal right, the payment of money, adjustment or interpretation of Contract terms, or other relief, arising under or relating to this Contract.
	Contract or Agreement: The written agreement executed between the Authority and the Contractor awarded pursuant to this Solicitation.
	Day: Calendar day, except where the term business day, work day or like term is used.
	Designer: The individual, partnership, firm, corporation or other business entity that is either the Contractor, or employed or retained by the Contractor, to manage and perform the design services for this Contract.
	Final Payment: The last payment to the Contractor for work performed under this Contract.
	Government:  The Government of the United States of America.
	Industry Standards: Drawings, documents, and specifications or portions thereof published by industry organizations. Industry Standards are not part of the Contract unless specifically listed in the Scope of Work.
	Legal Requirements: All Federal, State and local laws, ordinances, rules, orders, decrees, and regulatory requirements such as: building codes, mechanical codes, electrical codes, fire codes, Americans with Disabilities Act Accessibility Guidelines (A...
	Milestone: A specified date in this Contract by which the Contractor is required to complete a designated portion or segment of the work.
	Minor Irregularity:  A variation from the solicitation contained in a proposal that does not affect the price or other material term of the Contract and does not confer a competitive advantage or benefit not enjoyed by other offerors or adversely impa...
	Notice to Proceed: Written notice issued by the Authority establishing the date on which the Contractor may commence work and directing the Contractor to proceed with all or a portion of the work.
	Option: A unilateral right in the Contract by which, for a specified time, the Authority may elect to purchase, at a predetermined price, additional supplies, services and/or work called for by the Contract or to extend the term of the Contract.
	Period of Performance: The time allotted in this Contract for completion of the work. The period of performance begins upon the effective date of Contract execution and ends on the last date for complete performance of the final option. The period of ...
	Records: Books, documents, accounting procedures and practices, and other data, regardless of type and regardless of whether such items are in written form, in the form of computer data, or in any other form.
	Supplier: A subcontractor who is a manufacturer, fabricator, supplier, distributor, or vendor.
	Utility: A public and/or private facility or installation, other than  WMATA’s facility, that  relates to (1) the conveyance and supply of water, sewage, gas, chemicals, steam, petroleum products, and other piped installations, or (2) electrical energ...
	Utility Standards: Drawings and specifications for utilities published or issued by municipalities or utility companies.
	WMATA Safety Manual: A compilation of the appropriate safety and reporting requirements for the project as specified in the Contract.
	WMATA Safety and Security Certification Program Plan: A compilation of the appropriate system safety and security certification requirements for the Contract.



